
CITY OF CLAREMONT  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Regular Meeting  
February 6, 2017 

6:30 PM 
Claremont City Hall 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
3. INVOCATION- Dennis Marshall, Bethlehem United Methodist 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- Claremont Elementary Student 

  
5. MAYOR’S REPORT  

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA    

A. Regular Session Meeting Minutes- January 9, 2017 
B. Closed Session Meeting Minutes- January 9, 2017 

 
7. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 

 
8. PRESENTATION 

A. Department Budget Goals Update 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
        A. Future Treatment of Waste Water Analysis Update- Informational Only 
        B. Contract to Update Pavement Condition Analysis 
        C. Acceptance of Building Reuse Grant 
        D. Ordinance 01-17 Special Revenue Project Ordinance for Prysmian Building Reuse Grant 
        E. Ordinance 03-17 Budget Amendment FY 2016-2017 Budget- Prysmian Cable Systems  
 Economic Development 
        F. Ordinance 02-17 Budget Amendment FY 2016-2017 Budget  
        G. Acceptance of Duke Energy Grant for Electric Vehicle Charging Station 
                  
 11. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

  A. Department Dashboard Report  
  B. Code Enforcement Report 
 

12. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
       
13. CLOSED SESSION 
      A. G.S. 143.318-11(4) Economic Development 
                           
14. ADJOURN  



 EXHIBIT 6 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 6, 2017 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Wendy Helms, City Clerk 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Consent Agenda 
 
A. Regular Minutes from January 9, 2017  
 
B. Closed Session Minutes from January 9, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Motion to accept as presented 

 
 
 
 



   

Monday, January 9, 2017                       Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 1 of 4 

 
City of Claremont Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday, January 9, 2017 
 
The regular City Council meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the Council Chambers located at 
Claremont City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, January 9, 2017. 
 
The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor Shawn Brown, 
Councilmember Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember David Morrow, Councilmember Dale Sherrill, 
Councilmember Lee Miller and Councilmember Dayne Miller.  
 
The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Manager Catherine Renbarger, 
City Clerk Wendy Helms, Police Chief Gary Bost, Public Services Director Tom Winkler, Public 
Services Supervisor Bo Prince and City Attorney Bob Grant. 
 
Others in attendance were: Robert Winrow, Danny Hedrick, Robert Smith, Jason Lowrance, Charles 
Helms, Jessica Mays, Angela Brown, Jackson Brown, Lindsey Elrod, Meredith Becker, Kevin Little, 
DB Setzer, Les Morrow, Rebecca Bleich, Bo Teague, Scott Ramsey, Paul Beatty and Gene Monday. 
 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Shawn R. Brown called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  A quorum was present.   
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as presented. 
 
INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Kevin Little with First Baptist Church gave the invocation and Jackson Brown, from Claremont 
Elementary School,  led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Brown introduced the new principal at Claremont Elementary School.  Dr. Jessica Mays gave a 
presentation on new projects at Claremont Elementary.   
 
Mayor Brown thanked the Public Services Department for their work during the recent snow storm.  He 
also thanked City Manager Catherine Renbarger for her continued training. 
 
 



   

Monday, January 9, 2017                       Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 2 of 4 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. November 29, 2016 Special Called Meeting Minutes – Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a 
motion to accept November 29, 2016 special called meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember 
David Morrow seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
B. November 29, 2016 Closed Session – Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion to accept 
the closed session minutes from November 29, 2016. Councilmember David Morrow seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
C. December 5, 2016. Regular Session Meeting Minutes- Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a 
motion to accept December 5, 2016 regular meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember David 
Morrow seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
D. December 5, 2016 Closed Session Minutes- Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion to 
accept December 5, 2016 regular meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember David Morrow 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
CITIZEN CONCERNS & COMMENTS- No one approached the podium. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS- 
 
ECCCM- Rebecca Bleich presented an update on programs offered through the Eastern Cooperative 
Christian Ministries.  One new program will now provide automobile assistance for families with only 
one vehicle. 
 
Historical Structure Report on Jessup Kline Building- Last year, City Council directed staff to evaluate 
the City-owned Jessup-Kline Textile Mill and collect additional information that would help the City 
when determining the future of that property.  
 
Bo Teague with the Historical Association presented a historical structure report completed on the 
building.  He did recommend to Council that the City board up the windows and fix the hole in the roof 
while making a decision on the property. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS-   Council was presented a budget transfer.  These transfers were made at the 
request of the department heads.  This is informational only. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. MPO Board Council Representation- John Marshall with the Western Piedmont Council of 
Governments gave a brief presentation on the Greater Hickory Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Board (MPO) and the Transportation Advisory Committee Board (TAC). Claremont is in need of a 
Council representative to serve on the TAC committee. 
 
Councilmember Dayne Miller advised he would consider the position. 
 
 



   

Monday, January 9, 2017                       Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 3 of 4 

 
 
B. Resolution 01-17 Support of NCDOT Improvements for Project Longbow- As a part of Project 
Longbow, NCDOT has committed to extending the existing paved section of BGA Drive approximately 
1,400 feet to SR 2436 (Kelly Boulevard). Before NCDOT can secure and release the committed funds, a 
resolution in support of the project is needed.  
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to approve Resolution 01-17 supporting 
Project Longbow.  Second was made by Councilmember Lee Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
C. Adoption of Small Business Grant Program- During the November 29, 2016 economic development 
workshop, Council provided direction to further explore the implementation of a small business grant 
program with the intent of helping local businesses with façade improvements to promote investment in 
our commercial areas.  
 
Two draft proposals were presented for Council consideration.  Both proposals offer grants of up to 
$5,000 or 50% of the project costs (whichever is less) and are only available to properties located within 
the designated district  that are zoned Central Business or Community Business. 
 
Option 1: Façade Improvement Grant Program. Under this option, funds would only be available for 
improvements to building exteriors which are visible to the general public from the street. Parking lots 
would also be excluded.  
 
Option 2: Commercial District Revitalization Grant Program: Under this option, funds would be 
available for exterior projects including parking lots, as well as for certain interior renovations, such as 
HVAC, plumbing and electrical systems 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Dale Sherrill to accept Option 2, Commercial District 
Revitalization Grant Program, with the addition of text to read that in order to approve funding for 
improvements outside façade improvements must also be included as part of the project.  Second was 
made by Councilmember Dayne Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
D. Consideration of Golf Cart Ordinance- Council asked staff to look into the operation of golf carts on 
public streets. State statute allows municipalities to create their own ordinances to address the operation 
of golf carts on any public street where the speed limit is 35 miles per hour or less as long as the 
operator is at least 16 years of age.  The City Manager gave a presentation on similar golf cart 
ordinances and policy considerations.  Councilmember Dale Sherrill expressed concerns. 
 
No action was taken at this time. 
 
 
DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
The Departmental Dashboard was accepted as presented. 
 
 
CITY MANAGERS REPORT 
 
City Manager Renbarger thanked all City departments for their work during the snow storm.  She 
advised Council she was working on easements for the CMAQ Sidewalk Project.  A draft recreation 
calendar of events was presented for comments.  Finally she brought attention to the bench donated by 
the Busbee Family; it was originally from the Claremont Depot. 



   

Monday, January 9, 2017                       Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 4 of 4 

 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember David Morrow to recess the regular meeting at 8:09 p.m. and go 
into closed session reference G.S. 143.318-11(3) Consult with Attorney.  Second was made by 
Councilmember Timothy Lowrance.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller to go back into regular session at 8:28 p.m. Second 
was made by Councilmember David Morrow.   Motion passed unanimously. 
 
With no further business of the board, motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:28 p.m.  Second was made by Councilmember Lee Miller.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 
        
 
 
____________________________    
Shawn R. Brown, Mayor       
 
 
Attested: 
 
____________________________ 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT 7  
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 6, 2017 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested: Citizens Concerns and Comments 
 
Open the floor to citizens for comments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Open to citizens for their input. 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 8 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 6, 2017     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Information Only; No Action Requested  
 
During this item, staff will give a brief overview on the status of the 2016-2017 
Departmental Goals and Objectives. A complete list of the goals and objectives is 
included in the attachment.   

 
 
 
Recommendation: Information Only; No Action Requested  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

FY2016-2017 Departmental Goals & Objectives 
City Council  

• Continue implementation of Action Plan  
• Expand on promotion and support for local businesses  

 

Administration  
• Continue implementation of  Action Plan  
• Expand City’s presence on social media and continue updates to the City website 
• Explore opportunities to market and promote the City 
• Assist with implementation and closeout of federal CMAQ grant for sidewalks 

 

Fire Department  
• Expand customer and emergency  
• Strive to bring all members up to NFPA 1403 standards 
• Continue with national and regulatory standards 
• Analyze risk assessment to improve safety 

 

Planning Department  
• Adopt a revised Land Development Plan 
• Review and revise zoning & development ordinances 
• Increase availability of planning services and information to City residents  

 

Police Department  
• Complete training on non-lethal weapons and tactics 
• Increase the professional development of employees by adding an Intermediate Law 

Enforcement Certificate 
• Explore the feasibility of a K-9 Officers Position 
• Create a more involved, responsible community by building stronger community partnerships 

 

Public Works Department  
• Continue training opportunities for employees 
• Inspect all City sidewalks and begin a plan for repair 



 
 

• Establish new contacts in the maintenance field with commercial and industrial sites in the City 
• With the assistance of the City engineer, complete Standard Design Specification and Details 

 

Recreation Department  
• Improve physical appearance of the City Park 
• Improve in City Park and continue implementation of Park Master Plan 
• Work closely with the Youth Council and Recreation Committee 
• Create and promote sponsorship opportunities for local businesses 

 

Water & Sewer Fund 

• Continue in-house certifications for Distribution and Collection Systems  
• Determine City’s long-term plan for wastewater treatment 
• Install new commercial AMR water meters 
• Identify key areas of inflow & infiltration and begin work to fix identified areas 

 



EXHIBIT 9A 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 6, 2017     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Information Only; Update on Wastewater Needs Analysis 
 
During this item, staff from The Wooten Company will provide an update on the 
Wastewater Needs Analysis Study. To date, Claremont staff and engineers from Wooten 
have begun conversations with local municipalities and Catawba County regarding a 
potential partnership for the future treatment of our wastewater. Staff hope to have a 
final recommendation to Council this summer.   

 
 
 
Recommendation: Information Only; No Action Requested  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 9B  
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 6, 2017     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested: Accept Agreement with The Wooten Company to Update the 
2011 Pavement Condition Survey Report  
 
In 2011, the City of Claremont contracted for professional services to perform a 
pavement condition survey on all City-maintained streets. The report generated a 
Pavement Condition Rating for each block and provided cost estimates for repair. From 
that report, major street improvements were made to Genelia Drive and a portion Hursey 
Avenue. However, the current report is currently outdates as these reports are typically 
updated at least every 5 years.  
 
This agreement with The Wooten Company would provide an update to the 2011 
Pavement Condition Survey Report. To save costs and to provide our staff with 
additional knowledge, this contract provides 8 hours of training/field assistance 
identifying various pavement distresses and rating their severity and then allows for City 
of Claremont to actually compile the Street Distress Assessments. From the compiled 
information, the engineers will prepare cost estimates and put together a final report 
which will include an updated Pavement Condition Rating. This will help in budgeting 
and planning for future road repair and maintenance.  
 
The costs of these professional services is $9,450. Sufficient funds are included in the 
City’s current fiscal budget.  

 
 
Recommendation: Motion to Accept Agreement with The Wooten Company to 
Update the 2011 Pavement Condition Survey Report  
 
 
 
 
 





















 

  

 Meeting Date:  Monday, February 6, 2017  
 
TO:  City Of Claremont City Council, Manager and Clerk  
FROM:  Leah Martin, Sr. Planner 
SUBJECT: NC Commerce Building Reuse Grant for Prysmian Phase II Grant 

 
Background :  The City of Claremont has been awarded a $500,000 grant to be used towards Prysmian’s 
restoration of their fiber optic preform operations.  The project involves $20 million to restore 
manufacturing operations in three idle building areas totaling more than 30,000 sq feet and the creation 
of 50 full-time jobs with excellent wages and benefits.   

Grant Terms and Security:  The funding is a grant to the City and will be land as a 0% forgivable loan 
once the required 50 full-time job commitment is met.    Prysmian successfully closed out its Phase I 
building reuse grant through the City with reporting in October.      

Fiscal / Budgetary Effect:   The grant requires from the City of Claremont a match of 5% or $25,000.  In 
the application, the 5% match was dedicated to the grant administration.     
 
Actions To Be Taken:    

1. Acceptance of Grant Agreement:  The grant agreement has three primary elements – 
the Grant Agreement with NC Commerce and the Legally Binding Commitment and 
Promissory Note with Prysmian Cables and Systems USA, LLC – the owner of the land 
and building. 
 

 Council Action:  Council vote to accept the Grant Agreement.   
 

2. Special Revenue Project Ordinance:  The budget reflects the revenues and expenditures 
of the project.   

 
Council Action:  Council vote on the Project Ordinance as presented.   

 
3. Proposed WPCOG Agreement for Administration:   Attached for your review and 

approval is an administration services contract for the project.  This contract was included 
in the grant funding application as the 5% match from the City of Claremont for $25,000.   

 
Council Action:  Council vote on WPCOG contract as presented.   

 
Thank you for the opportunity to serve Claremont on this project.  Please do not hesitate to call 
me at 828 485-4252 if you have questions or concerns.    
 































































CITY OF CLAREMONT  
ORDINANCE   1-17 

 
SPECIAL REVENUE PROJECT ORDINANCE 

PRYSMIAN CABLES, LLC– ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
   
BE IT ORDAINED by City Council of Claremont, North Carolina, that pursuant to Section 
13.2 of Chapter 150 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following Capital Project 
Fund Ordinance is hereby adopted. 
 
Section 1.  That this ordinance provides for the receipt of a NC Commerce  Building 
Reuse Grant in the amount of $500,000 to be used toward building renovations for Prysmian 
Cables, LLC.    This is a 0% forgivable loan provided all conditions of the grant are met.  
This grant requires a local match of 5% or $25,000 which will be used to pay for grant 
administration and professional services. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall remain in effect for the duration of the project; subject to 
periodic review by the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  The City Manager is hereby directed to act on behalf of the City Council in all 
matters associated with the project within the terms of all contracts, agreements and legal 
requirements binding on the project and within limits of the funds appropriated herein.   
 
Section 4.   The following revenues are available for this project: 
 
 NC Commerce –Building Reuse Grant $500,000.00  
 Transfer from General Fund $25,000.00   
 Total Revenues $525,000.00 
                                
Section 5.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 
  
 Grant Administration (WPCOG)                          $25,000.00 
 Economic Development – Prysmian Cables, LLC. $500,000.00 
 Total Appropriations $525,000.00 
 
Section 6.  The City Manager is directed to report annually on the financial status of this 
project and keep the City Council informed of any unusual occurrences associated with the 
project.  
 
Adopted this the 6th day of February, 2017. 

__________________________              
                             Shawn R. Brown, Mayor 

 
Attested: 
 
                                                              
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 

 
                            



 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

WESTERN PIEDMONT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS AND 
THE CITY OF CLAREMONT  

FOR THE PROVISION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANCE 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
RURAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
PRYSMIAN CABLES AND SYSTEMS USA, LLC 

“PHASE II” 
 BUILDING REUSE GRANT 

FEBRUARY 6, 2017 –JANUARY 15, 2019  
 
 
 

This AGREEMENT, entered into on this the ____ day of  _________, 2017 by and 
between the Western Piedmont Council of Governments (hereinafter referred to as the "Planning 
Agency") and the City of Claremont, North Carolina (hereinafter referred to as the "Local 
Government"); WITNESSETH THAT: 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Agency is empowered to provide technical assistance by the 

North Carolina General Statutes and by resolution passed by the Planning Agency on April 17, 
1972.  Technical assistance shall consist of the provision of services as described in Attachment 
A, which is herein made a part of this Contract; 
 

WHEREAS, the Local Government has requested the Planning Agency to provide such 
technical assistance to the Local Government; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Agency desires to cooperate with the Local Government in 
every way possible to the end that the proposed activities are carried out in an efficient and 
professional manner; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
1. Personnel.  That during the period of this Contract, the Planning Agency will 

furnish the necessary trained personnel to the Local Government. 
 

2. Travel/Printing.  The Local Government will pay for expenses related to 
conferences, conventions, seminars, local travel, etc. of the personnel when the 
Local Government requests or approves travel related to the Local Government's 
planning program, or if it is beneficial to both parties, the costs will be shared on 
an agreed-upon ratio. 
The Local Government will also pay for expenses related to printing of report(s), 
mailings to advisory boards, and other costs not related to normal travel and 
staffing costs associated with personnel furnished by the Planning Agency. 

 



 
 3. Compensation.  The Local Government will pay the Planning Agency an amount 

of $25,000 (twenty-five thousand dollars) for the satisfactory performance of all 
services related to administration of the project as defined in the attached Scope of 
Services. It is expressly understood and agreed that total compensation shall not 
exceed the sum specified without prior approval of both agencies. 

 
4. Termination/Modifications.  The Local Government may terminate this Contract 

by giving the Planning Agency a thirty-day written notice.  Furthermore, if there is 
a need to amend the proposal outlined in Attachment A, either party may do so 
with the written approval of the other. 

 
5. Time of Performance.  The Planning Agency shall ensure that all services 

required herein shall be completed and all required reports, maps, and documents 
submitted during the period beginning February 6, 2017 and ending January 15, 
2019. 

 
 6. Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees of the Planning Agency,   
  Members of the Local Government, or Other Public Officials.  No member,  
  officer, or employee of the Planning Agency or its agents; no member of the  
  governing body of the locality in which the program is situated; and no other  
  public official of such locality or localities who exercise any functions or   
  responsibilities with respect to the program during his tenure or for one year  
  thereafter, shall have any financial interest, either direct or indirect, in any ontract  
 or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed in connection   
 with the program assisted under this Agreement.  Immediate family members of   
 said members, officers, employees, and officials are similarly barred from having   
 any financial interest in the program.  The Planning Agency shall incorporate, or   
 cause to be incorporated, in all such contracts or subcontracts, a provision    
 prohibiting such interest pursuant to the purpose of this section. 
 

7. Access to Records and Record Retainage.  All official project records and 
documents must be maintained during the operation of this project and for a 
period of three years following closeout.  The NC Department of Commerce, the 
Attorney General of the State of North Carolina, or any of their duly authorized 
representatives shall have access to any books, documents, papers, and records of 
the Planning Agency which are pertinent to the execution of this Agreement, for 
the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

 
8.  Liquidated Damages Clause.  If the project fails to be carried out within the time 

frame outlined in the administrative proposal due to activities attributed to the 
Planning Agency, the Local Government may assess the Planning Agency a sum 
in the amount of $100 per week for any subsequent weeks until completion. 

 
9.                  Termination of Agreement for Cause.  If, through any cause, the Planning Agency 



shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations  
under this Agreement, or violate any of the covenants, conditions, or stipulations  

  of this Agreement, the Local Government shall thereupon have the right to  
  terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of such termination and   
 specifying the effective date thereof.  In such event, all finished or unfinished   
 documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, and   
 reports prepared under this Agreement shall, at the option of the Local    
 Government,  becomes its property, and the Planning Agency shall be entitled to   
 receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on   
 such documents and  other materials in direct proportion to the extent of services  
 actually completed. 
 
   10.  Grantee Assurances.  In the performance of this Agreement, the Planning 

Agency shall comply with all applicable federal rules and procedures.  
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Planning Agency and the Local Government have 
executed this Agreement as of the date first above written. 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT:  PLANNING AGENCY: 
TOWN OF VALDESE  WESTERN PIEDMONT COUNCIL OF GOV'TS. 
 
 
By:________________________ By:_______________________________ 
   Town Manager             Executive Director 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT:   PLANNING AGENCY: 
 
 
By:________________________ By:_______________________________ 

Mayor       Chairman 
 
 
 
 Preaudit statement: 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner prescribed by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act.  
 
By:_________________________________________ 

Local Government Finance Officer 
 
  



                                                   ATTACHMENT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
CITY OF CLAREMONT  

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
RURAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

WORK PROGRAM/BUDGET 
FEBRUARY 6, 2017 – JANUARY 15, 2019 

 
 

Introduction 
 The Western Piedmont Council of Governments (WPCOG) has worked with City of 
Claremont on the NC Department of Commerce Rural Economic Development Division 
Building Reuse Grant for Prysmian Cables and Systems USA, LLC.  The project is locally 
referred to as Phase II of Prysmian’s restoration of their fiber optic preform operations.  The City 
of Claremont has been awarded a $500,000 grant to be used towards the project that involves $20 
million to restore manufacturing operations in three idle building areas totaling more than 30,000 
sq feet and the creation of 50 full-time jobs while maintaining their positions at the Rocky 
Mount, NC facility.   

 
 The Scope of Services proposal is intended to describe the various administrative 

activities the WPCOG will provide as related to the NC Department of Commerce Rural 
Economic Development Division Building Reuse grant funds. 

 
WPCOG Services  

Leah Martin will serve as Project Administrator and will provide the following 
specific activities:   
 
• Assistance with development of the City of Claremont’s Award Package. 

 
• Development and management of the overall project filing system. 

 
• Preparation of all pay request recommendations for the City. 

 
• Requisition of the grant funds. 

 
• Preparation of all required reports during the project construction. 

 
• Update Manager on status of project. 

 
  The City will be responsible for the following: 
 

• Adequate office space including utilities. 
 

• Direct payment of legal and audit services and general administrative costs. 



 
• All administrative costs not specifically identified as WPCOG responsibilities. 

 
 

Administrative Fee 
 
 The WPCOG proposes to provide the above-described services for a fee not to 

exceed contract of $25,000. 
 
Amendments and Termination 
 
  The City of Claremont can terminate this contract by giving a one-month written 

notice.  Should there be the need to amend this proposal during the term of the project; either 
party may do so with the approval of the other. 
  

 



EXHIBIT 9E  
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 6, 2017     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested: Adopt Ordinance 3-17 Amending the FY2016-2017 Budget  
 
This budget amendment is needed to appropriate the City’s local match portion of the 
Building Reuse Grant with Prysmian. The amendment calls for $25,000 in appropriated 
fund balance to be moved to the Building Reuse – Prysmian Project Fund as the City’s 
5% local match.    

 
Recommendation: Motion to Adopt Ordinance 3-17 Amending the FY2016-2017 
Budget    
 
 
 
 
 



City Council of the City of Claremont  

Catawba County, North Carolina  

Ordinance No. 3-17 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT AMENDING CLAREMONT  
MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:  

General Fund 
   Increase Decrease 
Revenues     
Appropriated Fund Balance     
10.3990.0000    $25,000  
Total    $25,000  
     
Expenditures   
Transfer to Building Reuse – Prysmian Project Fund   
10.4200.9700   $25,000  
Total   $25,000  

 
 
INTRODUCED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on 
February 6, 2017.  
 
ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  
February 6, 2017. 

 
 
_______________________, 
MAYOR Shawn R. Brown  

ATTEST:  
 
____________________________  
Wendy Helms, City Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
__________________________ 
Bob Grant, City Attorney  
 



EXHIBIT 9F 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 6, 2017     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Stephanie Corn, Finance Officer 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested: Adopt Ordinance 02-17 Amending the FY2016-2017 Budget  
 
This budget amendment will move the pay per call money ($22,750) into part time 
salaries for quarterly disbursement to firefighters.  This is done annually. 
 
Other amendments are at the request of Department Heads to align budgets for the 
second half of the year. 

 
Recommendation: Motion to Adopt Ordinance 02-17 Amending the FY2016-2017 
Budget    
 
 
 
 
 







EXHIBIT 9G  
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 6, 2017     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested: Accept Agreement with Duke Energy for Plug-In Electric 
Vehicle Charging Station 
 
In late 2016, the City applied for, and was awarded, a $5,000 grant from Duke Energy 
which would provide the funds to install an electric vehicle charging station at the City 
Park. Since that time, Duke Energy has been working to prepare contract documents and 
provide project specifications for all of the municipalities that received grants.  
 
The contract with Duke is attached as a part of this Council Item and is requested to be 
submitted back to Duke Energy by March 1st.  Staff are currently working to obtain 
proposals from vendors on the actual costs of the project. Staff recommend approving 
the agreement contingent upon the grant providing sufficient funds to cover the costs of 
the project. Tom Winkler and Leslie Meadows have both been working on this project 
and will be available to answer any questions.   
 
Recommendation: Motion to Accept Funding Agreement with Duke Energy for 
Plug-In Electric Vehicle Charging Station Contingent Upon Sufficient Funding   
 
 
 
 
 



FUNDING AGREEMENT  
FOR  

PLUG-IN ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION PROJECTS 
 

 This Funding Agreement for Plug-In Electric Vehicle Charging Station Projects (this 

“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this 16th day of January, 2017 (the “Effective Date”), 

by and between Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC (“Duke Energy”), and City of Claremont  

(“Performing Party”).  Each of Duke Energy and Performing Party may be referred to herein as a 

“Party” and collectively as “Parties”.  
 

RECITALS: 

   
 WHEREAS, as set forth in that certain Consent Decree entered into by Duke Energy on 

October 20, 2015 (the “Consent Decree”), Duke Energy is required to spend $3,000,000 to 

implement environmental mitigation projects in the State of North Carolina designed to reduce air 

emissions from reduced vehicle emissions or reduced use of fossil-fueled electricity generation;  

 

 WHEREAS, of the aggregate amounts required to be spent pursuant to the Consent Decree, 

Duke Energy has allocated up to $1,000,000 for the reimbursement of costs incurred by certain Duke 

Energy customers to purchase and install electric vehicle charging stations; 
 

WHEREAS, this project is designed to provide direct financial support to Duke Energy 

customers (and, in certain instances, customers of those customers) that wish to install and own 

electric vehicle charging stations, including, without limitation, the charge ports associated therewith 

(collectively, the “Charging Stations”) and require assistance funding such purchase and 

installation; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Performing Party has expressed a desire to procure and install certain 

Charging Stations and has requested that Duke Energy provide funding for the Performing Party to 

procure, construct and install such Charging Stations; and   
 

 WHEREAS, Duke Energy has agreed to provide funding to the Performing Party to procure, 

construct and install the Charging Stations in the manner set forth herein;  
 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, the mutual promises and conditions 

set forth in this Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, Duke Energy and Performing 

Party agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Project.  The Performing Party covenants to Duke Energy that the Performing Party 

shall, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, (a) purchase and install all 

Charging Stations for each Project (as defined below) set forth on Exhibit A and (b) continue own, 

operate and maintain such Charging Stations after the purchase and installation thereof.  The 

Performing Party shall be responsible for all ongoing costs of ownership associated with each 

Charging Station, including, but not limited to, associated energy, maintenance, repair and 

connectivity costs.     
 

2. Project Descriptions and Requirements.   

 



a. Project Descriptions.  Exhibit A further describes each project to be 

completed by the Performing Party hereunder and specifically sets forth the general locations 

at which the Charging Stations are permitted to be installed, the aggregate number of charge 

ports to be installed at each such location, and the aggregate amount of funds reserved by 

Duke Energy for such project (collectively, a “Project”).  Exhibit B contains a map detailing 

the approved locations for each Project.  The Performing Party may only install the Charging 

Stations at an approved location and shall not change or modify the location of any Project 

(outside of the approved locations) or the aggregate number of charge ports to be installed at 

any Project without the prior written consent of Duke Energy.  Exhibit D contains a good 

faith estimate of the aggregate cost to procure, install and construct each Project (the 

“Estimated Eligible Costs”) as set forth in a detailed budget broken down to indicate 

equipment costs, construction and installation and related labor costs. 

 b. Charging Station Requirements.   

 

(i) All Charging Stations purchased by the Performing Party shall be new 

and unused and shall be owned by the Performing Party.  

 

(ii) The Performing Party shall install proper signage at each Project 

location indicating that parking spaces at which any charge port is located are for 

“Plug-In Electrical Vehicle Use Only.”   

 

(iii) The Charging Stations shall be either AC level 1 (provided cord set is 

hardwired), AC level 2, or DC Fast Charge and shall be installed at locations 

designed to support charging of plug-in electric vehicles while parked for several 

hours. 

 

(iv) The location of each Project must be well-lit and safe, shall be in 

compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, and shall meet all requirements 

of Exhibit C.   

 

(v) Each Project shall be located in an area reasonably accessible to the 

public and may not be located in a privately owned parking lot or in a Park N Ride 

lot. 

  

3. Term.  This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and continue until the 

third (3rd) anniversary of the date Duke Energy provides any funding hereunder or until otherwise 

terminated earlier pursuant to this Agreement.  The Performing Party hereby acknowledges that all 

Projects must be completed in their entirety by no later than December 31, 2017.   
 

4. Award Amount.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, Duke Energy 

will provide funding to the Performing Party for each Project in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) 

the Estimated Eligible Costs for such Project as set forth in Exhibit D and (ii) an amount equal to 

$5,000 per charge port at any Project (with a cap of $20,000 per Project location and $50,000 in the 

aggregate).  With respect to any Project, the Performing Party shall be responsible for all costs 

incurred in excess of the funding provided to the Performing Party pursuant to this Section 4.    
 

5. Use of Funds.  The Performing Party shall apply all funding received by Duke 

Energy hereunder solely and exclusively towards approved Eligible Costs.   



 

6. Funding Procedures.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Duke 

Energy shall provide funding to the Performing Party in the following manner. 
  

 a. Eligible Costs.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Eligible Costs” 

shall mean only those costs associated with the procurement, construction, and installation of 

the Charging Stations, including, but not limited to, reasonable costs associated with placing 

the Charging Stations in service, including the charging station equipment, installation labor, 

related materials and supplies, permitting fees, and utility service extension costs.  For the 

avoidance of doubt, in no event shall any costs associated with network connectivity or data 

subscriptions be considered Eligible Costs hereunder and all such costs shall be deemed to be 

outside of the scope of this Agreement and not subject to funding by Duke Energy.   
 

 b. Funding Request.  Promptly following the date hereof, the Performing Party 

shall provide evidence to Duke Energy of its binding commitment to procure, install and 

construct the Charging Stations for each Project.  Such evidence may include executed 

purchase orders, signed agreements, or other similar documentation reasonably acceptable to 

Duke Energy.  Upon Duke Energy’s satisfaction of such commitment, Duke Energy shall 

provide to the Performing Party the funding amount determined pursuant to Section 4 hereof.    

 

c. Project Certifications.  No later than five (5) days following completion of a 

Project, the Performing Party shall provide to Duke Energy a certificate signed by an 

authorized officer certifying (i) the aggregate Eligible Costs actually incurred by the 

Performing Party to complete the work for such Project, (ii) that all such costs are accurate 

and constitute Eligible Costs, have been paid in full by the Performing Party, and are 

consistent with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.  Together with such certificate, 

the Performing Party shall also provide copies of all invoices received by the Performing 

Party with respect to such Project and all evidences of payment thereof, including cancelled 

checks, payment confirmations or other similar documentation.  If the actual Eligible Costs 

incurred by the Performing Party for a Project are less than the funding amount determined 

pursuant to Section 4 (such amount, the “Overpayment”), the Performing Party shall 

reimburse Duke Energy the amount of such Overpayment concurrently with the provision of 

the certificate required hereby.        
 

7. Performing Party Obligations.   
 

a. Licenses and Permits.  The Performing Party hereby certifies that, prior to the 

commencement of any work for any Project, it has secured, and shall maintain and renew all 

permits, licenses, approvals and certifications required by any party, including, without 

limitation, any owner of such Project location or governmental or regulatory agency, for 

proper execution and completion of such work.  
 

b. Compliance with Laws.  The Performing Party shall comply, and shall cause 

all of its subcontractors to comply, with all applicable state, Federal and local laws relating to 

each Project and any of the work related thereto.  
  
c. Audit Rights.  Performing Party shall, for at least three (3) years after the 

completion of any Project, keep and maintain such records or accounts of the Performing 

Party as are necessary to verify and support any and all charges paid for with respect to such 



Project using the funding provided hereunder.  This includes verification that any and all 

material, services, labor, and other expenses incurred for such Project have been paid.  All 

books and records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. Such books and records shall be made available, on mutually agreeable dates and 

times, at the Performing Party’s facility for verification, copying, audit and inspection by 

representatives of Duke Energy.  Any such audit shall be at Duke Energy’s expense and 

conducted during the Performing Party’s normal working hours; provided, however, that the 

Performing Party shall provide reasonable assistance necessary to enable Duke Energy  to 

conduct such audit and shall not be entitled to charge Duke Energy for any such assistance. 
 

d. Optional Data Collection.  From time to time, Duke Energy may contact the 

Performing Party to participate in Duke Energy’s data collection on PEV charging practices 

in order to better understand the needs of electric vehicle drivers.  The Performing Party may 

elect to participate in such collection process its sole discretion but shall not be required to do 

so.    
 

8. Representations and Warranties.  The Performing Party hereby represents and 

warrants to Duke Energy that: 
 

a. it is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of its jurisdiction of 

incorporation or formation and is qualified to do business in all other jurisdictions in which 

the nature of the business conducted by it makes such qualification necessary;  

 

b. it has all requisite legal power and authority to carry on its business and to 

execute this Agreement and to perform the terms, conditions and provisions hereof, as 

evidenced pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. 160A-11.; 
 

c. the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement have been duly 

authorized by all requisite corporate action; 
 

d. this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of it, 

enforceable in accordance with the terms hereof; 
 

e. there is no action, suit, proceeding or order now pending or, to its knowledge, 

threatened against it before any government authority that could reasonably be expected to 

materially and adversely affect the ability of the Performing Party to perform its obligations 

hereunder; and 

 

f. it hereby ratifies, adopts, and agrees to all representations in the approved 

application and deliverables it has provided to Duke Energy during the proposal process and 

agrees to give prompt written notice to Duke Energy if there is any material change in these 

certifications or deliverables.   
 

9. Performing Party Certifications.    

 

a. The Performing Party has not otherwise committed to acquire or install 

associated electric vehicle charging stations (without project funding support) and is not 

using and shall not use any portion of the funding hereunder to satisfy any obligations that it 

may have under other applicable regulations or requirements of law.   

 



b. The Performing Party is a retail or wholesale customer of Duke Energy or 

Duke Energy Progress, LLC  (or is a customer of a wholesale customer of Duke Energy or 

Duke Energy Progress, LLC) and is located within the State of North Carolina. 
 

10. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the 

Performing Party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Duke Energy (including its parent, 

subsidiary and affiliate companies), its officers, employees, agents, and any other party with an 

ownership interest in the premises, from and against all liability, loss, costs, claims, damages, 

expenses, judgments, and awards, whether or not covered by insurance, in any way related to or 

arising or claimed to have arisen in whole or in part from the acts or omissions of the Performing 

Party, its employees, volunteers, subcontractors, agents or assignees in its performance of, or failure 

to perform under, this Agreement.  This indemnification shall include all costs including attorney's 

fees reasonably incurred in pursuing indemnity claims under or enforcement of this Agreement. 

Performing Party waives all rights of recovery, including for contribution, against Duke Energy and 

its directors, officers, employees, affiliates and subcontractors for any matters to which this Section 

may apply. The provisions of this Section 10 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

 11.   Insurance.   
 

a. Without limiting any obligations or liabilities of the Performing Party under 

this Agreement, the Performing Party shall provide and maintain, and shall require its 

subcontractors to provide and maintain, for the term of this Agreement, at its own expense, 

insurance coverages, to the extent applicable, in forms and amounts no less than the 

following: (i) Workers’ Compensation specific to the applicable statutory requirements for 

the work to be performed; (ii) Employer’s Liability Insurance of not less than $1,000,000 

each accident/employee/disease; (iii) Commercial General Liability Insurance having an 

available limit of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 in the aggregate for 

contractual liability, personal injury, bodily injury to or death of persons, and/or loss of use or 

damage to property; (iv) Commercial/Business Automobile  Liability Insurance (including 

owned, non-owned or hired autos) having an available limit of at least $1,000,000 each 

accident for bodily injury, death, property damage, with any fellow employee exclusion 

removed, and contractual liability; and (v) Umbrella/Excess Liability insurance with 

available limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and follow form of the underlying 

Employer’s Commercial General and Auto Liability insurance, and provide at least the same 

scope of coverages thereunder. 
 

b. All insurance policies provided and maintained by the Performing Party and 

each subcontractor shall: (i) be underwritten by insurers which are rated A.M. Best “A- VII” 

or higher; (ii) specifically include Duke Energy and its directors, officers, employees,  

affiliates, and subcontractors as additional insureds, with respect to Performing Party’s or its 

subcontractors’ acts, omissions, services, products or operations, whether in whole or in part, 

excluding, however, for Worker’s Compensation/Employer’s Liability and E&O; (iii) be 

endorsed to provide, where permitted by law, waiver of any rights of subrogation against 

Duke Energy and its directors, officers, employees, affiliates and subcontractors; (iv) provide 

that such policies and additional insured provisions are primary with respect to the acts, 

omissions, services, products or operations of Performing Party or its subcontractors, whether 

in whole or in part, and without right of contribution from any other insurance, self-insurance 

or coverage available to Duke Energy and its affiliates; and (v) contain a standard cross 

liability clause and separation of insured and severability of interest provisions except with 



respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability.  Evidence of such coverage shall be provided 

via Performing Party’s certificate of insurance furnished to Duke Energy prior to the start of 

any work, upon any policy replacement or renewal and upon Duke Energy’s request.  All 

insurance policies shall provide that the insurer will provide at least thirty (30) days’ written 

notice to the Performing Party, who in turn shall provide at least thirty (30) days’ written 

notice to Duke Energy prior to cancellation or non-renewal of any policy (or ten (10) days’ 

notice in the case of non-payment of premium).  Performing Party’s compliance with these 

provisions and the limits of insurance specified herein shall not constitute a limitation of 

Performing Party’s liability or otherwise affect Performing Party’s indemnification 

obligations pursuant to this Agreement.   
 

12. Default and Termination. 
 

a. If Duke Energy determines, in its sole discretion, that the Performing Party 

has failed to comply with any term or condition in this Agreement, Duke Energy may 

terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice by Duke Energy to the 

Performing Party.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the Performing Party shall be liable to 

repay to Duke Energy all of the funding amounts distributed to it under this Agreement.  
  

b. If notified by Duke Energy in writing that it is in violation of any of the 

terms, conditions or provisions of this Agreement, and a default has occurred, and Duke 

Energy elects not to terminate the Agreement immediately pursuant to Section 12.a above, 

the Performing Party shall have thirty (30) days from the date of such notification to remedy 

the default or, if Duke Energy believes the remedy will take in excess of thirty days to 

complete, the Performing Party shall have thirty days to satisfactorily commence a remedy of 

the causes preventing its compliance and curing the default situation.  Expiration of the thirty 

days and failure by the Performing Party to remedy, or to satisfactorily commence the 

remedy of, the default whether payment of funds has been fully or partially made, shall result 

in Duke Energy at its discretion, declining to make any further payments to the Performing 

Party, or in the termination of this Agreement by Duke Energy.  If this Agreement is 

terminated, the Performing Party shall be liable to repay to Duke Energy all of the funding 

amounts made to it under this Agreement. 
 

c. If Performing Party becomes insolvent, or fails generally to pay its debts as 

they become due, or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they become due, or 

makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; commences any case, proceeding or 

other action seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, liquidation, dissolution or 

composition of itself or its debts or assets, or adopts an arrangement with creditors, under any 

bankruptcy, moratorium, rearrangement, insolvency, reorganization or similar law of the 

United States or any state thereof for the relief of creditors or affecting the rights or remedies 

of creditors generally, Duke Energy may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written 

notice by Duke Energy to the Performing Party. 
 

d. Upon receipt of notice of termination from Duke Energy, the Performing 

Party shall immediately stop work on the terminated portion of the Agreement unless 

otherwise directed by Duke Energy.  If so requested by Duke Energy, the Performing Party 

shall provide to Duke Energy a report with supporting information describing the status of  

any Project as of the date of such termination.   
 



e. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved by Duke Energy is intended to 

be exclusive of any other available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be 

cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now 

or hereafter existing at law or in equity.  No delay or omission to exercise any right or option 

accruing to Duke Energy upon any default by the Performing Party shall impair any such 

right or option or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right or option may 

be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient by Duke Energy. 
 

13. Miscellaneous. 
 

a. Assignability.  Neither this Agreement nor any right, interest or obligation 

hereunder may be assigned by the Performing party without the prior written consent of Duke 

Energy, and any attempt to do so shall be null, void and ineffective.   
 

b. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of North Carolina shall govern this 

Agreement, except that the North Carolina conflict of law provisions shall not be invoked in 

order to apply the laws of any other state or jurisdiction.  
 

c. Disputes.  The Parties shall attempt to resolve any claims, disputes and other 

controversies arising out of or relating to this Agreement (collectively, “Disputes”) promptly 

by negotiation between executives who have authority to settle the Dispute and who are at a 

higher level of management than the persons with direct responsibility for administration of 

this Agreement.  A Party may give the other Party written notice of a Dispute which has not 

been resolved in the normal course of business.  Executives of both Parties shall meet at a 

mutually acceptable time and place, and as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to 

attempt to resolve the Dispute.  All negotiations pursuant to this clause are to be deemed 

confidential and shall be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of 

applicable rules of evidence.  If the Dispute has not been resolved by negotiation within sixty 

(60) Days of the disputing Party’s initial notice, then either Party may initiate 

litigation.  Venue for any such action shall lie exclusively in the appropriate state or federal 

courts in and for the State of North Carolina. Performing Party and Duke Energy agree to 

relinquish and waive their rights to a trial by jury in any action brought hereunder.   
   

d. Notices.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications hereunder 

shall be in writing and shall be dispatched by nationwide overnight courier service, such as 

(without limitation) Federal Express, or by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt 

Requested, postage prepaid, address to the parties as follows:  
 

  If to Duke Energy:   

Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 

400 S. Tryon Street 

14th Floor 

Charlotte, NC 28202 

Attn: Stacy Phillips  

Email: stacy.phillips@duke-energy.com 
  

With a copy to: (which will not constitute as notice) 

 

Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 

550 S. Tryon Street 

mailto:stacy.phillips@duke-energy.com


45th Floor 

Charlotte, NC 28202 

Attn: Andre Rose, Deputy General Counsel 

Email: andre.rose@duke-energy.com  
 

If to the Performing Party: 
 

City of Claremont 

P.O. Box 446 

Claremont, NC 28610 

Attn: Catherine Renbarger 

Email: crenbarger@cityofclaremont.org 
 

      

Notices under this Agreement shall be deemed given upon the earlier of the date of delivery 

or the date upon which delivery is refused. Any changes in the names or addresses set out in 

this Section 13.d,  shall be through written notice in conformity with the requirements set 

forth herein. 
  

e. Section Headings.  The headings of the several sections of this Agreement are 

inserted solely for the convenience of reference and are not a part of and are not intended to 

govern, limit or aid in the construction of any term or provision of this Agreement. 
 

f. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is the entire agreement between the 

parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements 

between the parties.  No claim of waiver, modification, consent or acquiescence with respect 

to any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be made against either party, except on the 

basis of a written instrument executed by and on behalf of such parties.  The parties 

acknowledge and agree that the recitals provided above constitute an integral part of this 

Agreement and shall be given the same force and effect as any other provision in this 

Agreement. 
 

g. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to 

any person or circumstance shall be invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of 

this Agreement and the application of such provisions to other persons or circumstances shall 

not be affected thereby and shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted by law. 
 

h. Other Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as giving any 

person, firm, corporation or other entity, other than the parties hereto, any rights, remedy or 

claim under or in respect to this Agreement or any provision thereof. 
 

i. No Waiver.  Neither the failure of either party to exercise any power given 

such party hereunder or to insist upon strict compliance by the other party with its obligations 

hereunder, nor any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof, shall 

constitute a waiver of either party's right to demand exact compliance with the terms hereof. 
 

j. Survival.  All of the warranties, covenants and representations of Performing 

Party, including, but not limited to Section 8, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.   
 

[Signatures on following page] 

mailto:andre.rose@duke-energy.com
mailto:crenbarger@cityofclaremont.org


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed by 

its duly authorized representative as of the date first above written. 
 

 

City of Claremont     Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 
 

 

By:  By:   

Name:  Name:   Melisa Johns   

Title:  Title:   Vice President, Business and Product 

Development- Distributed Energy Technology 



Exhibit A 

 

Project Descriptions 

 

 

Locations Approved by Duke Energy for Installation of Ports:  Claremont City Park 

 

Quantity of Ports Awarded:  1 

 

Funds Reserved:  $5,000 

 

 

 

 

  



Exhibit B 

 

Project Location Maps 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit C 

 

Accessibility Requirements 

 

(See Attached) 

 

 

 



Exhibit D 

 

Estimated Eligible Costs 

 



Month YTD Month YTD % In % Out 
647 647 Calls for Service 33 33 88% 57%
135 135 Working Fires 3 3 65% 38%
76 76 Training Hours 0
9 9 Prevention Programs 4 4
7 7 Structural Responses 8 8 Month YTD 

Warrants 23 23 EMS Calls 14 14 Calls for Service 0
Open Cases 10 10 Training Hours 0
Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD 
Vehicles Serviced 12 12 Water Turned Off 5 5 Total Zoning Permits 2 2
Recycling Tons- Dec 2016 9.75 112.66 Water Taps 0 0 Commercial Projects 0 0
Solid Waste Tonnage 38.92 38.92 Water Purchased 0 New Dwelling Units 0 0
Street Lights Replaced 6 6 Water Sold 7,517,000       7,517,000 Customers w/ Inquiries 7 7
Work Orders 38 38 McLin  WWTP Avg. 0 New Plats Reviewed 0 0

1010 (8) 1010 (8) North WWTP Avg. 0 Plng Brd Agenda Items 0 0
Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Rescue Squad 

Public Works Utility Dept. Planning & Zoning Dept.

Claremont January 2017 Dashboard Report 

Calls Answered 

Citations Served 

Warnings 

Number of Arrests 

Accidents 

 Police Dept. Fire Dept. Financials 

General Fund 

Water/Sewer Fund 

Installation of communication equipment , station sign 
completed, station lighting completed.

Ofcers. Kirby and Goff attended Death & Crime Scene First Respondes 
Class.Capt. Long, Cpl. Martin, Officer Bumgarner and Officer Goff had a 
Cub Scout group come to the PD for a presentation on Police work, Crime 
Scene Investigation as well as 1st Responder procedures.

Water leak on Catawba Street.  Road will be 
repaired by first week of February.

Crews are working on inflow and infiltration to the 
sewer system.

Code Enforcement, EnerGov/Ereview training, site 
plan/utility review for Substance and Agracel Inc. 

Sewer Line Jetted/ Manholes 



Code Enforcement Report

January, 2017

Last Updated Jan. 31, 2017: Leslie Meadows

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

A B C D

Property Owner Property Address Issue Status

Jonathan Miller 3060 Oak St unfinished house House must reach completion by March 2017 in order to keep mortage loan with bank. Spot 
checked 1/18/17.  Jonathan was on site with a drill.

Janice Salyers 2730 E US Hwy 
70

outdoor storage-
Tim's Towing

Allowed inside property on 1/25/17 to verify tires are gone. Property is now in full compliance of code.  The 
total $3,250.00 in daily fines aquired has yet to be collected.  Case Closed?

7-Eleven Inc. 3137 N. Oxford sign obstructing 
the right-of-way

Visited 1/18/17 and 1/25/17. Spoke with manager on duty.  Agreed to move sign back out of 
sightline, behind bush.  Was moved as of 1/30/17.  Case Closed.

Charles Stone 
(Dollar General)

3037Centennial 
Blvd. 

outdoor 
storage/trashy

Spot checked 1/25/17.  Less Carts, Still Trashy.  Asst. Manager stated that rarely can all carts be gone at same 
time, due to delievery/transport schedule.  To notifiy me if/when happens.  A trash sweep of parking lot has 
been scheduled. Will continue to follow-up.   

HSM Inc. S. Oxford St sediment/erosion 
control

HSM staff met with Tom on site 1/25/17. Agreed to grade and install French drainage 
ditch.  HSM is currently taking bids on this project.  


	1-AGENDA
	2-RFBA Consent Agenda
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	3-January 9, 2017 Regular Minutes
	15-RFCA Citizen Comment
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	20-RFCA-Update on FY2016-2017 Goals and Objectives
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	21-FY2016-17 Goals Attachment
	30-RFCA Wastewater Needs Analysis
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	40-Pavement Condition RFCA
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	41-Pavement Condition Agreement
	50-Award Council Memo 2-6-17 letterhead
	51-Building Reuse Agreement
	52-Special Revenue Ordinance Prysmian
	53-WPCOG Contract Prysmian Cables Phase II 2-2017
	Introduction
	WPCOG Services
	Administrative Fee
	Amendments and Termination

	70-RFCA BA for Prysmian
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	72-Building Reuse Prysmian Budget Amendment
	80-RFCA BA
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	81-Ordinance 02-17 Budget Amendment
	90-Electric Vehicle Charging Stations
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	91-Claremont-Duke Energy Upfront Payment Agreement
	100-Dashboard Report copy
	Sheet1
	Sheet2

	101-code enforcement report 2-17
	Sheet1


